TOWN OF WILLISTON
Planning Commission
Minutes of November 16, 2021— 7:00 P.M. November 16, 2021

Watch recording on YouTube: https://youtu.be/s3tt0DpJae4
Location: Annex Conference Room (7878 Williston Road) and Zoom
Meeting ID 158-006-871 on zoom.us/join or by calling 1-646-558-8656

Planning Commission Present: Meghan Cope (Chair), Chapin Kaynor (vice chair), Shayla Livingston, Cate
Lamar, Alex Daley, Jill Pardini; Absent: Ron Bomer; Staff: Matt Boulanger, Melinda Scott; Public: Taylor
Newton (CCRPC staff); Geoff Ferrell (FBC consultant), John Marcotte (member of HAAC)

7:00 PM

7:05 PM

7:10 PM

7:20 PM

CALL TO ORDER
PUBLIC COMMENT

Matt said he would be attending the Selectboard meeting later tonight to shepherd the bylaw
amendments. Matt said he recently received a memo from the Racial Equity Partnership that he
shared with the Planning Commission. The memo spoke about the need to provide affordable
housing. Matt said he hopes to invite someone from the Partnership to a Planning Commission
meeting sometime soon.

Chapin asked about the review of the Capital Budget, and when the Planning Commission would
have a chance to review and comment on it. Melinda said the CIP budget review is on the
December 7 agenda. Meghan noted the Planning Commission had asked last year if they could
review it ahead of time so their comments would be more constructive and have some potential of
contributing input. Melinda apologized for not presenting the Capital Budget in a timelier
manner, and said it is difficult because all the departments are behind in developing budgets.
Chapin stated the Planning Commission had hoped to have greater input into shaping the budget
and not just be presented with a budget that was finished. Shayla suggested presenting a bulleted
list to the Planning Commission ahead of time, just a rough preview of proposed projects and/or
facilities.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Chapin noted that the date at the top was wrong. Meghan went over the comments she made,
namely clarifying the discussion. The minutes were revised. With a motion made by Cate Lamar
and seconded by Chapin Kaynor the Commission approved the minutes as amended with a vote
of 4-0-2, Jill Pardini and Alex Daley abstained because they were not present.

FORM BASED CODE - ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS
Geoff Ferrell introduced the Architectural Standards section of the Form Based Code, beginning
from Windows and Doors.

Chapin asked whether transom windows can’t be anywhere except above an entrance? Geoff
stated transom windows can be other places, and he will clarify 4(i) accordingly.

Meghan asked about materials for doors — are fiberglass doors prohibited? Geoff agreed they
should be allowed. 3(b) Alex said wood composite or PVC would make a lot more sense in


https://youtu.be/s3tt0DpJae4

Vermont’s climate. Geoff stated there will be an approved synthetic materials list. The standard is
“equivalent or better.”

Meghan asked about 4(a)(v) — she doesn’t understand the wording and what it means. Geoff
stated the idea is to keep the architecture simple with doors and windows not spanning across
floors.

Chapin noted that windows should be able to span stairwells. Geoff agreed and will make sure the
rules allow that. Chapin stated that windows in upper stories should be only 20% operable, not
40% because at the smaller proportion it would increase energy efficiency and be safer. Geoff
stated he disagrees with Chapin’s view on the energy efficiency. Geoff notes that a modern
operable window decreases cooling expenses in the summertime, and therefore is more energy
efficient. Chapin also thinks that requiring the higher percentage of operability will result in
smaller windows. Taylor stated the specs are minimums so windows could have a higher
percentage of operability.

Meghan takes issue with the requirement for garage doors to face alleys only when adjacent to an
alley. Meghan would like as few garage doors as possible facing the street. Geoff stated that all
garages will be accessed from the back.

Shopfronts Geoff stated the requirement for all shops to have shopfronts. Alex takes issue with
the prohibition on garage doors as a shopfront. Geoff stated they are allowed, just not roll-up
garage doors. Geoff will clarify this in the code.

Geoff noted the prohibition on opaque shopfront windows — people have to be able to see inside.
Shayla asked what a string course is. Geoff explained it is a horizontal course of stone or masonry
that protrudes from the facade and distinguishes a horizontal break. Meghan wonders if it also

serves as a drip edge.

Awnings and Canopies Alex asked why no lighted canopies? Geoff stated, similar to no one-
quarter cylinder canopies, it’s a matter of style. Admittedly it’s subjective.

Cate does not like the “1775” canopy, she thinks it looks too much like it belongs in a big city.
The Planning Commission discussed the aesthetics of this particular canopy, including its
flatness, scale, and width.

Chapin would like the code to say that PV solar is allowed for canopies as long as all other
criteria are met. Alex stated that if allowed, the specifications need to be detailed and probably
included in the allowed materials list.

John Marcotte raised a concern about standing seam metal and slate awnings shedding snow very
quickly, as they could be dangerous. Geoff stated the assumption is that snow will be cleared
from roofs regularly and that would be required outside of the code.

Meghan asked about 4(b) and adding “doors” to “awnings must shade windows”. Geoff agreed.
Cate asked what a one-quarter cylinder awning is and Geoff explained.

Facade Composition for Large Buildings: In Taft Corners a few developers own a large amount
of land, and also development happens on a large scale, so the tendency is for big, large

monolithic buildings. The idea of these standards is to break up large frontages into smaller
pieces, a more human scale. Average storefront frontages of 60 or 70 ft, and 75 or 85 for urban




general, urban general 2 and urban neighborhood frontages. Geoff stated that the fagade widths
and configurations should not be uniform but vary across blocks.

Alex stated he is very supportive of these specifications. Chapin agrees and has no comments.
Cate as well.

Street Walls and Fences: Geoff stated these will tend to be short and small.

Chapin asked if this should include sitting walls and benches. Meghan agrees with Chapin and
wants to find a way to avoid “hostile architectural” strategies like glass or metal imbedded in the
top of a wall to discourage sitting. Everything should be as accommodating as possible rather
than hostile. Meghan thinks that 4ft is too high and 2ft is too low — finding the right height for
sitting is important. Geoff said there could be a requirement for seating based on minimum length
of wall.

Jill stated she likes the idea of a green wall or walls as canvases where people can create art and
spaces can be beautified, strategically placed in a development. Materials should be designed
with this in mind. Geoff said there are good examples of this in Washington DC.

Meghan stated she supports this, and also suggested there could be playful spaces such as a wall
deep enough to hold soil and plants/flowers, or a wall with a seating nook in it. Even if that can’t
be required, could we provide visible examples of this and encourage this type of architecture?

Chapin noted that there may be a need for a citizens group to vet such design ideas.
Entry Porches, Porches, Stoops and Canopies Chapin suggested mentioning solar canopies are

allowed. Taylor asked if a statement about allowing PV solar could be stated once in the
document rather than in multiple places.

Lighting and Mechanical Equipment Meghan asked if there would be a Taft Corners standard
for street lighting. She is concerned about several different styles of street lighting on one corner
or street segment. Taylor stated this is an area that is intertwined with Public Works Specs so
could be complicated.

Chapin agrees with Meghan.

Alex said there should be standards for color temperatures and colored lights. Geoff mentioned
either defining the daylight spectrum or a certain range of kelvin temperature.

Cate echoed Meghan and Chapin’s comment about restricting the types of streetlights.

Signage: Meghan noted that Williston’s sign regulations are pretty robust. Matt stated this code
would prohibit any new freestanding signs, which is different from today’s standards.

Chapin said the minimum height of wall signs is 11 ft, he thinks that may be too high. He said he
is not sure whether corner signs should be allowed at all. He would raise the maximum sign
coverage for upper story windows from 10 to 20%. Temporary sandwich board signs limited to
36 inches height. Chapin thinks this is too low. Geoff agreed.

There was discussion of internally illuminated signs. Matt said they are currently prohibited
except for within windows and limited to 2sf. Cate doesn’t particularly like neon signs and would
want to prohibit them even in windows.



9:00 PM

Alex agrees with the current standard for neon signs.

Chapin commented on the pictures on the last two pages. He doesn’t like any of them. The
Planning Commission discussed the pictures and what they wanted to see. Jill said she has some
good examples from the FBC survey she submitted during the public outreach phase.

Chapin stated he would like to bring up some suggestions he put into the project journal. Taylor
commented on the solar canopy suggestion, stating that larger parking lots could be required to be
retrofitted to be solar ready, and that requirement could apply throughout town not just in Taft
Corners. Chapin stated he would like to see this happen in the town hall parking lot when it gets
expanded.

Define public green spaces — Geoff stated they don’t need to define it because it will be drawn
into the Regulating Plan.

Taylor asked to confirm the November 30 meeting. Matt stated yes, the PC will meet on that day.
Meghan asked if Melinda and Matt had any updates about the Official Map. Matt said that what
they want to make sure that what’s refleeted in the Official Map reflects what’s in the Regulating
Plan. One question is whether the streets in the Growth Center should be dimensioned instead of
being shown as one-dimensional lines. The goal is to present the Official Map with the Form
Based Code to the Selectboard at the same time.

Matt said the Selectboard voted to adopt all the bylaw amendments tonight, and thanked the
Planning Commission for all their hard work.

ADJOURN

The meeting adjourned at 8:58 pm.

UPCOMING MEETINGS
> November 30, 2021, Form-Based Code: Urban Place Regulating Standards
> December 7, 2021, Capital Budget Review
> December 21, 2021, Form Based Code: Regulating Plan; Operating Budget

For more information about Planning Commission meetings, go to town.williston.vt.us and click on “Public
Records and Documents,” then “Agendas & Minutes.” Or call 802-878-6704 or stop by the Planning & Zoning
Office at 7878 Williston Road.




